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STATEMENT FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Dear shareholders of KVB Kunlun:

Another year has gone by in a blink of an eye.

In summary, the Group achieved a total annual revenue of
approximately HK$471.1 million and recorded an annual profit
of approximately HK$34.2 million. These statistics might not be
as outstanding as they would be under normal circumstances.
However, there were ongoing fluctuations in the global financial
market and economic outlook in 2018 which were further worsened
in the fourth quarter, where uncertainties in terms of the direction
of monetary policies and trade disputes have weakened the
investment sentiment and trading traffic at the end of the year.
Under such circumstances, the Group’s results could be deemed
as satisfactory as it was able to maintain substantial growth in
earnings and stable financial conditions. The Group still maintained
strong control over risks and operations, therefore, our customers,
counterparties and the regulatory authorities have placed a lot of
trust in our current system, network and trading capability.

In early 2018, the Group issued convertible bonds with an
aggregate principal amount of HK$200,000,000, which have been
fully subscribed. This is the first capital operation completed by the
Group since its transfer of listing from the GEM to the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, which demonstrated
the confidence of the subscribers and the market in the financial
independence and fulfilment of commitments of listed companies.

2018 was also a year of transitioning from the old to the new.
As the original chairman of the Board retired at the end of his
term, we welcomed the arrival of four new executive and non-
executive directors, bringing in new experience and vitality to the
management of the Group.

2019 will be a challenging year ahead. We believe the fundamentals
of global economy will become harsher while regional protectionism
persists. The trade conflicts and the mid-to-long term adjustments
in macro and monetary policies will continue to leave deep impacts,
and may even cause short-term panics in the market due to
changes or fluctuations, including detrended fluctuations of the
exchange rate. In consideration of the interests of the industries
and strategic positions behind the trade war, no one will make easy
concessions for compromise in the trade conflicts. The aggravating
geopolitical risks faced by certain countries and regions are also of

major concerns.
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STATEMENT FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

A7 B AR R

As a company engaging in forex brokerage business, we do not
believe this could bring positive effect on market activities; on the
contrary, the uncertainties and risks will lead to a drop in trade
sentiments of investors.

Yet, as negative market sentiment brews on, we see that
organizations and enterprises are attempting proactive
adjustments, in order to mitigate risks and reduce potential losses
through learning and using foreign exchange-related financial
instruments. The implementation of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area strategic development plan brought not
only ideas, but also massive demands from enterprises in financial
trading, and market systems which are gradually becoming
internationalized.

The Group finds opportunities hidden amidst these challenges.
Traditional barriers in financial information, data and computation
models are slowly giving way to technological advances which are
open for sharing, thus bringing in new operation and management
models to the real economy. In particular, the application of
foreign exchange has gone beyond trading and payment, and is
becoming an electronic technology which can help the enterprises
in optimizing every micro-financial operation. In the context of this
general environment, it is worthwhile to explore how the Group
can leverage the system, information and corporation treasury
models that have long been accumulated by KVB to enhance its
capabilities in foreign financial technology and how the Group can
gradually expand its existing product offering with the advantages
of strategic shareholders in the industry.

The Group will remain with its composure while preparing to
respond to all kinds of changes, and seeking for prudent progress.
In 2019, the Group will continue to focus on our main tasks in
improving preparations for risk management, quick responses
and stringent risks controls. With years of trading experiences and
insights into the future, the Group will actively respond to market
fluctuations and provide our investment customers with superior
and dependable trading services. Meanwhile, we will continue
to capitalize on our advantage in differential services and march
forward along the path of servicing the real economy with our
technological capabilities. The Group will definitely adhere to the
strategy of attaining growth and success through technological
development. Only by keeping our initial aspirations of mutual
benefits and prosperity through intelligence and open mind that we
can grow together with our customers.

ERIEEINERLEBH AR HAITRAE
HRMERXHRESHERRERS - kREgH
RERO N EEEERNREELSER MK -

B2 - a5 A HIGEEERBENRR - P
HEIRBLREEEARRAR  RBEBEBER
EANESCR TAERISEENEA @ [FE
B B RS o M BERAE R A BRS B R
MEEH - LB BNEHMSH RO TER
M ERBREEANDE  2BRXHHE
Ko ARFESBEBEHTIGEFERAR -

HNEBME  hEPTREKSE - ERE
B8 HEHELSERESZETHERNK
X HEANBRERPFDS - GERBEHES
R EEREERN  FRIRINENERD
BIRARRG RN - BEZREBEFHIMB)
N EMFE— AR E 2IRIF - EEEAR
BT SENAEEKVBRFEEN RS - &
B hERERZERITE FINES BB XL
7 oAl D BB AR R V1T B B B AT RO E
mEBEZE S EAML - BEEHER -

AN R E IR KA - REE20195F K4
BT ARBTE  cERREREER - DR
RFE - BTRE - BEERNORZ &R LER
REGRRAEGEHTIE N RIREEFRE
HEERENRZHRS - R - B 7FEBRHX
e EEBRRBSERLE EERTT - TE
HRMNERCRBFED - MEE T EREE
PHXER A BRE R AR - MEAAEERE - B
EE - KRNI - TTREFIEFINE P —#ERK
AT ©



STATEMENT FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

KVB Kunlun will be celebrating its 20th anniversary soon. We firmly
believe the growth potentials of the industry that we operate in and
the opportunities given by the time, and we fully understand our
social responsibilities and missions. All KVB staff will strive to create
greater value for our shareholders, investors and customers who
have been growing and developing alongside KVB Kunlun.

LIU Stefan
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 18 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

L e M g i

The Board is pleased to present the audited consolidated results of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018, together with the
audited comparative figures for the corresponding year in 2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Business review

During the year under review, we have experienced a market
condition with increased overall market volatility and many swings,
driven by changing global economic conditions and unexpected
geopolitics events. Significant swings in market volatility can result
in increased customer trading losses and higher turnover; therefore,
it is difficult to predict volatility and its effects on the financial
markets. Overall, the revenue had decreased compared with 2017
figures.

The year started with positive economic outlook for US and other
major countries, which had driven global asset values to new highs
in early February. The turning point was Trump administration’s
decision to renegotiate trade terms between US and other major
economic bodies (Canada, EU and China, etc.), which led to
fear of increased tariffs. As trade-conflicts built up, and Federal
Open Market Committee continued to adjust cash rate up to the
“neutral level” in response to a fast recovering US economy, the
global investors moved quickly towards US assets, which led to
depreciation of many major currencies, commodities and indexes
against USD. Geopolitics events, such as US sanction on Iran, US-
Turkey diplomatic conflict, Saudi Arabic journalist assassination,
and Brexit deal negotiation had also imposed unexpected
fluctuation on the market.

The top three most traded FX pairs in the year under reviewed were
USD/JPY, EUR/USD and GBP/USD. For contracts for difference
(*CFD”) and commodity products, gold was the most popular
product traded by our customers, followed by the crude oil.

In the currency market, the price movement of USD/JPY in 2018
was in a slightly narrower range compared with that of 2017. The
highest and the lowest price levels of USD/JPY were observed to
be 114.55 and 104.56 respectively, a nearly 999-pips trading range
during 2018; this is compared with a price movement of 1,128-pips
in 2017, with highest level as 118.6 and the lowest as 107.32.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EUR/USD was mainly traded within in a price range of 1,339-pips,
which was slightly narrower than that of 2017. The highest level of
EUR/USD was traded at 1.2555, while the lowest level was seen at
1.1216. The price range of EUR/USD in 2017 was 1,751-pips, with
highest price at 1.2092 and lowest price at 1.0341.

The GBP/USD price moved in a wider range in 2018 than that in
2017. The highest and lowest prices were observed to be 1.4377
and 1.2478 respectively, a nearly 1,899-pips range. This can be
compared with the 1,671-pips range observed in 2017, between
highest level of 1.3657 and lowest level of 1.1986.

For CFD and commodities, the gold mainly traded within a price
range of $205.76 USD/ounce. The highest price of gold was traded
at $1,366.15 USD/ounce and the lowest at $1,160.39 USD/ounce
under the period of review. The 2017 price range, in comparison,
was $211.44 USD/ounce; with highest price at $1,357.61 USD/
ounce, and lowest at $1,146.17 USD/ounce.

The crude oil price range had become much wider in 2018,
compared with that of 2017. In 2017, the crude oil was traded in a
range of $18.46 USD/barrel, with highest price at $60.51 USD/barrel
and lowest at $42.05 USD/barrel. The price movement of crude
oil in 2018, however, was almost doubled to $34.54 USD/barrel,
with highest price traded at $76.9 USD/barrel and lowest traded at
$42.36 USD/barrel.

The retail margin FX trading market is highly competitive. This
includes international multi-product trading firms, other online
trading firms, and financial institutions. We expect the market to
remain very competitive in the foreseeable future. We are constantly
looking for ways to improve our customer service level and meet the
needs of our clients, by providing more trading opportunities in the
global financial markets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
PG 2w M g B

Total income

The total income of the Group decreased by approximately 8.5% to
approximately HK$471.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 from approximately HK$514.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2017.

A. Leveraged foreign exchange and other trading income

The leveraged foreign exchange and other trading income of
the Group decreased by approximately 6.1% to approximately
HK$372.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2018
from approximately HK$397.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2017. This was mainly due to the decreased
trading volume during the year ended 31 December 2018 as
compared to the year ended 31 December 2017.

B. Cash dealing income

The cash dealing income of the Group increased from
approximately HK$1.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2017 to approximately HK$3.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2018. The increase was mainly attributable to
higher market volatility and successful dealing strategy.

C. Fee and commission income

The fees and commission income of the Group decreased
from approximately HK$108.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 to approximately HK$56.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The decrease was mainly due
to the decrease in commission earning as a result of lower
trading volume.

D. Other income

The Group recorded other income of approximately HK$38.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 as compared
to other income of approximately HK$8.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

As at 31 December 2018, there was a fair value gain of
approximately HK$26.0 million on the embedded derivative
portion of convertible bonds issued on 12 February 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
recorded an exchange gain of approximately HK$9.4 million,
the recorded exchange gain for year ended 31 December
2017 was approximately HK$5.4 million. This was mainly due
to the year-end translation of monetary assets denominated in
foreign currency into local reporting currency by KVB Kunlun
New Zealand Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

Referral expenses and other charges

The referral expenses and other charges of the Group decreased
by approximately 41.3% to approximately HK$175.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2018 from approximately HK$299.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2017. The decrease was
mainly due to the decrease in the trading volume of the clients
referred by services providers.

Staff costs

The staff costs of the Group increased by approximately 78.6% to
approximately HK$101.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 from approximately HK$56.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2017. The increase was mainly due to special bonus
paid and share options granted during the year.

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation increased by approximately 17.3%
to approximately HK$14.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 from approximately HK$12.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2017. The increase was mainly due to the upgrade of
computer software for the year.

Lease payments under land and buildings

Lease payments under land and buildings increased by
approximately 6.2% to approximately HK$14.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018 from approximately HK$13.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2017. The increase was mainly due to
the increased rental expenses of lease review in some offices.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
PG 2w M g B

Administrative and other operating expenses

The administrative and other operating expenses of the Group
decreased to approximately HK$84.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2018 from approximately HK$96.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017. The decrease was mainly due to the
significant decrease in handling fee expenses which are partially
offset by the increase in marketing expenses and repair and
maintenance expenses compared with 2017.

Net profit and net profit margin

For the reasons set forth above, the Group achieved a net profit of
approximately HK$34.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 compared with the net profit of approximately HK$27.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017. The net profit margin for
the year ended 31 December 2018 was approximately 7.3% (2017:
5.3%).

Excluding the fair value gain of approximately HK$26.0 million on
the embedded derivative portion of convertible bonds, in summary,
the decrease in profitability of the Group was primarily contributed by:

e decrease in transaction volume resulting in decreased trading
revenue, and

e increased expenses in a few main items due as disclosed
above.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the year under review, the operations of the Group were
financed principally by equity capital, cash generated by the
Group’s business operations, the cash and bank deposits and
proceeds from convertible bonds issued by the Company.

As at 31 December 2018, cash and bank balances held by the
Group amounted to HK$725.4 million (2017: HK$517.8 million).
There were no bank borrowings of the Group (2017: nil) and the
carrying amount of convertible bonds of the Company amounted to
HK$191.1 million as at 31 December 2018 (2017: nil).

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio calculated on the basis of net debts (finance lease
obligations and convertible bonds) over the total shareholders’
equity as at 31 December 2018 was approximately 33.5% (2017:
0.05%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

During the year under review, the Group recorded an exchange
gain of approximately HK$9.4 million (2017: HK$5.4 million). This
was mainly due to the year-end translation of monetary assets
denominated in foreign currency into local reporting currency by a
subsidiary of the Group in New Zealand. The foreign currency risk is
managed proactively by regular review of the currency positions in
the basket of currency mix. In order to minimize the exposure of the
Group to risk, the Group has hedge strategy based on prevailing
market conditions and working capital requirements of subsidiaries.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year under review, the capital structure of the Group
consists of equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves, and convertible bonds
issued by the Company.

ISSUE OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 12 February 2018 (the “Issue Date”), the Company issued
7.5% convertible bonds (the “Bonds”) with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$200 million to BC Global Fund SPC - BC Fintech
Fund SP and PA Investment Funds SPC for the account of PA High
Technology Fund SP (collectively the “Bondholders”).

The Bonds will expire at the second anniversary of the Issue Date.
The Company may extend the maturity date for a further term of one
year from the maturity date by giving notice in writing to all of the
Bondholders on or before the maturity date and with the prior written
consent from Bondholders of not less than 50% of the aggregate
principal amount of Bonds outstanding. In the event of extension of
the maturity date, the interest rate will be adjusted from 7.5% per
annum to 12% per annum.

The Bonds are convertible into the Company’s ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each (the “Ordinary Shares”) at the initial conversion price
of HK$0.613 per share (subject to adjustment). The closing price of
the Ordinary Share was HK$0.500 on the Issue Date. Based on the
assumption of full conversion of the Bonds at such initial conversion
price, a total of 326,264,273 Ordinary Shares will be allotted and
issued by the Company. As at 31 December 2018, no Bonds were
converted into any Ordinary Shares by the Bondholders, and the
aggregate principal amount of the Bonds remained as HK$200
million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
PG 2w M g B

The Directors consider that the issue of the Bonds would provide
strong capital support for the development of the Group’s business
and strengthen the Group’s capital base effectively after full
conversion of the Bonds.

The net proceeds from the issue of the Bonds of approximately
HK$199.28 million. The Company currently intends to use the net
proceeds for investment in financial assets and working capital
purposes. The net proceeds from the issue of the bonds have been
utilized for trades with clients in foreign currencies, commodities
and products through the margin trading business.

Details of the issue of the Bonds were set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 25 January 2018 and dated 12 February
2018 respectively.

NEW PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

During the year under review, there was no new products or
services launched.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES DURING THE YEAR
UNDER REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group did not have
any material acquisitions and disposals.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group engaged a total of 53
employees (2017: a total of 76). Total staff costs including
Directors’ remuneration for the period under review amounting
to approximately HK$101.7 million (2017: HK$56.9 million). The
Group’s remuneration policies are in line with the prevailing market
practices and are determined on the basis of performance and
experience of individual employees. The Group provides retirement
benefits in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in
the place where the staff is employed. The Company has adopted
a share option scheme pursuant to which the Directors and
employees of the Group are entitled to participate.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, certain bank balances of the Group
amounting to approximately HK$90.4 million (2017: HK$86.0
million) were used to secure the banking facilities and office lease
bonds. As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

We plan to:

1. expand operations in the worldwide overseas Chinese
communities;

2. extend the range of our financial services and products;
3. further upgrade our online trading platform; and

4. develop the high net worth and sophisticated institutional
clients segment.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LIU Stefan, aged 52, is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Liu is one of the responsible officers of KVB Kunlun
International (HK) Limited (*KVB HK”) and is also a director of KVB
Kunlun Holdings Limited (“KVB Holdings”) and certain subsidiaries
of KVB Holdings, which do not belong to the Group.

Mr. Liu was appointed as the managing director of the Group in
March 2006 and the country manager of New Zealand and Australia
in August 2011. He was appointed as a Director of the Company on
9 November 2010 and is responsible for the overall management
and strategic development of the Group.

Before joining the Group, Mr. Liu served as the managing director of
Aiming International (New Zealand) Co. Limited from August 1997
to August 2001 and was responsible for fostering the development
plan, structuring investment direction and strategy, liaising and
maintaining relationships with business partners and searching
for and maintaining public relationship with potential strategic
investors.

With his previous and current positions in the Group and other
companies, Mr. Liu has obtained over 16 years of experience in the
forex market which is relevant to the management, operation and
development of the Group. Mr. Liu obtained his bachelor’'s degree
in arts from the Tianjin Foreign Studies University (K245MNERE A )
in July 1989 and completed the OPM program at Harvard Business
School in November 2018.

Mr. HUANG Songyuan, aged 42, is the director of global margin
business of the Group responsible for the management of
investment business of the Group, including foreign exchange,
commodities and equities business. He is currently one of the
responsible officers of KVB HK and KVB Kunlun Pty Limited (“KVB
AU”), and a director and managing principal of KVB Kunlun New
Zealand Limited (“KVB NZ”) and a director of KVB Kunlun Securities
(NZ) Limited. KVB AU and KVB NZ, all of which are subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Huang joined the Group in August 2002
as an executive accountant of KVB NZ and was responsible for
general accounting duties, book-keeping and financial reports.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Huang was the manager of treasury strategy of KVB NZ and
was responsible for the implementation of its dealing system and
the day-to-day running of its global forex dealing operations and
all its associated financial management. Currently, he is also a
independent non-executive director of Marlborough Wine Estates
Group Limited, which is listed on the New Zealand Stock Exchange.

Mr. Huang obtained his bachelor’'s degree in accounting from
the Sun Yat-Sen University (FFLUKEE) in June 1999, his master’s
degree in international business from the Auckland Institute of
Studies at St. Helens, New Zealand in December 2000 and his
graduate diploma in commerce from the University of Auckland in
May 2002. Mr. Huang became a chartered financial analyst of the
CFA Institute in September 2006. Mr. Huang has been a member of
the Institute of Directors in New Zealand since 2015. Mr. Huang was
appointed as a Director on 21 May 2018.

Mr. WONG Yiu Kit, Ernest, aged 51, is the Chief Financial
Officer and the Company Secretary of the Company. He is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wong is also
the President and Group Chief Financial Officer of KVB Kunlun
Holdings Limited, a substantial Shareholder of the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of SFO. Mr. Wong has extensive experience
in venture capital, corporate finance, business development,
legal, IT, financial and general management Currently, he is
an independent non-executive director of Renheng Enterprise
Holdings Limited (HKEx Stock Code: 3628), HongDa Financial
Holding Limited (HKEx Stock Code: 1822), Progressive Path Group
Holdings Limited (HKEx Stock Code: 1581), China Regenerative
Medicine International Limited (HKEx Stock Code: 8158) and
Common Splendor International Health Industry Group Limited
(HKEx Stock Code: 286). Mr. Wong has also served as a director
of Adamas Finance Asia (London Stock Code: ADAM, listed on
London AIM market (previously known as China Private Equity
Investment Holdings Limited (“CPE”)). He was an independent non-
executive director of Legend Strategy International Holdings Group
Company Limited (HKEx Stock Code: 1355) from November 2016
to September 2018.
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Previously he was an executive director and the chief financial
officer of CPE. He was in charge of the private equity investment,
portfolio management, corporate finance activities including fund
raising and initial public offering, financial management, legal
services, IT and company secretarial work. Before that, Mr. Wong
was the chief financial officer for Hong Kong Applied Science
and Technology Research Institute Company Limited (“ASTRI”)
and held management responsibilities for its overall financial,
legal, IT, business development and corporate finance functions.
Before joining ASTRI, Mr. Wong was the vice president for Vertex
Management Pte Ltd. (now known as Vertex Venture Holdings
Ltd.),focusing on venture investment in communications, IT and
electronics sectors. Previously, he also held management positions
at Guangdong Investment Ltd., Transpac Capital Limited and
Accenture.

Mr. Wong earned his Bachelor of Business Administration degree
from the University of Hong Kong, and received his Master of
Science in investment management from the Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology and Master of Science in Electronic
Engineering from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr.
Wong is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, United Kingdom and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. He is also a charter-holder
of Chartered Financial Analyst, United States of America and
a member of the Hong Kong Security Institute. Mr. Wong was
appointed as a Director on 21 May 2018.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Stephen Gregory McCOY, aged 66, joined the Group in
October 2006 as the senior manager of operations and was
later appointed the country manager of Australia in 2008. Mr.
McCoy is also a director of KVB Kunlun Pty Ltd and LXL Capital
[l Limited. Mr. McCoy is also a director of other subsidiaries of
KVB Holdings which do not belong to the Group. Before joining
the Group, Mr. McCoy worked at Arab Bank Australia Limited as
an internal auditor from May 2002 to December 2003 and later
as the head of operations from January 2004 to October 2006
and was responsible for managing the operations department of
the bank including treasury settlements, retail operations, loan
administration, office administration, trade finance and product
compliance in line with regulatory authorities and policies and
procedures of the bank and before that, Mr. McCoy worked at
Westpac Banking Corporation for over 30 years from February 1969
to April 2001 and last held the position of manager of operational
risk. With the previous and current positions held by Mr. McCoy
in the Group and other companies, Mr. McCoy has obtained over
46 years of combined experience in the financial services industry
which is relevant to the operation and development of the Group.
Mr. McCoy was appointed as a Director on 15 April 2011.

Mr. LI Jiong, aged 48, concurrently serves as the director of
CITIC Securities Overseas Investment Company Limited which is
a substantial Shareholder of the Company within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO and CITIC Securities International USA, LLC.,
as well as a chief treasury officer and person-in-charge of the
treasury department of CITIC Securities Company Limited (“CITIC
Securities”, a shareholder of CITIC Securities Overseas Investment
Company Limited). After Mr. Li joined CITIC Securities in 1996, he
had served as the manager of the international cooperation division
of the information centre of China International Trust Investment
Corporation (renamed to CITIC Group Corporation), manager of
development department of CITIC International Cooperation Co.,
Ltd., manager of the bond department, deputy general manager
of the treasury department and person-in-charge of the treasury
department of CITIC Securities. Mr. Li obtained a bachelor's degree
in International Finance from the University of International Business
and Economics in 1992 and a master’s degree in MBA from
Tsinghua University in 2000. Mr. Li was appointed as a Director on
21 May 2018.
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Mr. XU Jianqgiang, aged 38, currently serves as a deputy head of
the equity derivatives business line of CITIC Securities and also
a head of Equity Derivatives at CITIC CCSA. After Mr. Xu joined
CITIC Securities in August 2005, he had served as an analyst of the
research department, product development manager of the equity
derivatives business line, head of trading of the equity derivatives
business line and head of equity derivatives of CITIC Securities
International Company Limited. Mr. Xu obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Mathematics and Applied Mathematics from Peking
University in 2003 and a master’'s degree in Mathematics from the
University of British Columbia in 2005. Mr. Xu was appointed as a
Director on 21 May 2018.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. ZHAO Guixin, aged 55, joined the Group in April 2011.
From June 2005 to July 2007, Ms. Zhao worked at Tianjin Jiandu
Investment & Development Co. Ltd. (KZEHEEEREAR A
A]) which was engaged in property and investment and she
was responsible for providing consultation services in project
financing, cooperation in public affairs and international investment
matters. From May 2003 to August 2007, Ms. Zhao also provided
consultation services in finance and investment related matters to
Tianjin Wanhe Investment & Development Co. Ltd. (K& 8 Fl#% & 3%
EEBR /A F]) which was engaged in property and investment. From
July 2001 to October 2003, Ms. Zhao was appointed as the general
manager of the audit department of China CITIC Bank, Tianjin
branch and was responsible for managing the overall performance
of the audit department, implementing policies and procedures and
other management work. Ms. Zhao has over 26 years of experience
in accounting and auditing matters including but not limited to
financial analysis, financial management, asset management,
assessment and auditing of financial positions and involvement
in financial and auditing decision making process. Ms. Zhao
completed the course in economics and management organised
by the Party School of Central Committee of the Communist Party
of China (XA REH) in December 1996. Ms. Zhao further
completed the course in business administration organised by
Nankai University (FFIAZ) in September 1999 and obtained her
master’'s degree in arts in international relations in economy and
trade from The Flinders University of South Australia in October
2002. Ms. Zhao was assessed and awarded the qualification of
accountant by the Tianjin branch of the Bank of China in 1992.
Ms. Zhao was appointed as a Director on 15 April 2011.
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Mr. Cornelis Jacobus KEYSER, aged 61, first joined the Group
in December 2003 as a senior consultant. In June 2005, he was
appointed as the joint Group managing director (group operations
and treasury) and managing director (designate proposed banking
division) and held that position until he left the Group in April 2008.
From August 2014 Mr Keyser is a director of Orkney Investment
Company which engages in equity, property and other investment
activity and from April 2016 he is a director of Highgate Property
Group, an ASIC authorised financial institution (AFSL), focussed on
managed investment property schemes in Australia. From March
2003 to February 2014, Mr. Keyser has been a director of Keyser
Merchant & Capital Finance (New Zealand) Limited which engaged
in the provision of consultation services and he was responsible for
managing all aspects of such company and acted as a consultant.
From July 1999 to August 2002, Mr. Keyser held the position of
group treasurer to Gensec Ltd. and Gensec Bank. From September
1996 to March 1997, Mr. Keyser worked at the Swabou Building
Society Group of Companies as the group managing director
and was responsible for the operations of the group. From May
1990 to August 1992, Mr. Keyser was appointed the managing
director of Keyser Trading (Pty) Limited and from September
1992 to June 1999, he was appointed the managing director of
Keyser Merchant and Capital Finance (Pty) Limited. Mr. Keyser is a
chartered member of the Institute of Directors in New Zealand Inc.
and a member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors. Mr.
Keyser has over 26 years of experience in the financial industry. Mr.
Keyser obtained his bachelor’'s degree in industrial psychology, his
honours degree in economics (Cum laude) and his master’s degree
in economics (Cum laude) from the Rand Afrikaans University in
April 1981, April 1982 and April 1983, respectively. Mr. Keyser was
appointed as a Director on 15 April 2011.

Mr. LIN Wenhui, aged 40, joined the Group in July 2011. Mr. Lin
is currently the audit director of Fujian Yango Holdings Group
Limited (18 2% 5B AR A R]). Mr. Lin was appointed as a
supervisor of supervisory committee in June 2017 and currently as
a chairman of the supervisory committee of Fujian Longking Co.,
Ltd. (SH. 600388) with effect from November 2017. With effect from
1 July 2014, Mr. Lin has temporarily been transferred to the board
of supervisors of SAC in the State Council for the inspection of
enterprises directly under the central government. He was an audit
manager of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in Beijing from September
2011 to August 2016. From April 2009 to September 2011, Mr. Lin
was a manager of RSM China Certified Public Accountants (1
ISEEEHAIEMFT). Mr. Lin served as a project manager in the
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taxation and accounting services department of Reanda Certified
Public Accountants (FIZEGFTEMEBKAEREEAR) from
September 2004 to March 2006 and a manager assistant in the
audit department of the same firm from April 2006 to December
2008. From August 2002 to September 2004, Mr. Lin worked in
the accounting department of the head company of the Beijing
Shougang Oxygen Plant (Jt R & %% ER) which was engaged in
the production and sales of oxygen and other gases for industrial
enterprises. Mr. Lin obtained his bachelor’'s degree in accounting
from the Harbin University of Commerce (FAEEREZE AZ) in July
2002 and master’s degree in accounting from Renmin University of
China in January 2018. Mr. Lin obtained his certificate of accounting
professional from the Finance Bureau of Beijing (At R ETEB) in
June 2003 and passed the PRC’s national accounting examinations
and was awarded the certificate issued by the Committee of the
Registered Accountant Examination of the Ministry of Finance (B4
e stemE#ZE ) in April 2005. Mr. Lin has been a member
of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants recognised
by the Ministry of Finance of the PRC (FF = A IR X F1 3 B BX26) since
April 2008. Mr. Lin was appointed as a Director on 16 July 2011.

OTHER SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. ZHANG Rongjun is the regional financial controller of New
Zealand and Australia of the Group. Ms. Zhang joined the Group
in December 2002 as the financial controller. Ms. Zhang has also
been a director of KVB NZ since May 2009. From December 1997
to July 2002, Ms. Zhang served as a senior accountant at HWI
Limited Chartered Accountants and was responsible for preparing
financial statements and tax returns and providing tax advice.
Ms. Zhang has over 21 years of experience in accounting matters
in New Zealand. Ms. Zhang obtained her bachelor’s degree in
accounting from the Unitec Institute of Technology in April 2000.
Ms. Zhang has been a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of New Zealand since January 2002.
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Mr. SO Chi Hang Stephen is the director and head of investment
of KVB AU. Mr. So joined the Group in May 2003 as a senior sales
executive of margin forex of KVB AU. He has been the Responsible
Manager (RM) of the Australian Financial Services License (AFSL)
for the company since then. Mr. So is at present a director of KVB
AU. Before joining the Group, Mr. So worked at The Hong Kong
Chinese Bank, Limited and Lippo Securities Holdings Limited from
March 1994 to December 2002 and was responsible for providing
investment advice and dealing with private clients and retail clients.
He first joined The Hong Kong Chinese Bank, Limited as a senior
investment consultant and thereafter served as a senior manager of
the global investment division of Lippo Securities Holdings Limited.
Mr. So has over 25 years of experience in advising clients on
financial products ranging from securities, indices and stock futures
and options, foreign exchanges and other derivatives financial
products. Mr. So obtained his bachelor of arts degree (Economics)
from the University of Sydney, Australia in April 1992, and a diploma
in financial services issued by the Australian Financial Markets
Association in 20083.
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KVB Kunlun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is committed to high standards of
corporate governance in the interest of its shareholders and other
stakeholders. It has continued and will continue to identify and
adopt the best corporate governance practices appropriate to the
Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has
complied with all code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the (“Stock Exchange”),
except for the following deviations:

Pursuant to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separated and should not
be performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and chief executive should be clearly
established and set out in writing.

Mr. Li Zhi Da retired as chairman of the board (the “Board”) of
directors (the “Directors”) of the Company and non-executive
Director after the conclusion of the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 21 May 2018 (the “2018 Annual General
Meeting”). After the retirement of Mr. Li, no individual was appointed
as chairman of the Board. The Board will keep on identifying
suitable candidate to assume duties as chairman of the Board as
soon as possible.

Pursuant to code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code, the chairman
should at least annually hold meetings with the independent non-
executive directors without the presence of other directors. The
then Chairman did not hold any meeting with the independent non-
executive Directors without the other Directors present in 2018 due
to the tight schedule of the Chairman.

Pursuant to the code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman
of the board should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Li Zhi
Da, the then Chairman and a non-executive Director, was unable to
attend the 2018 Annual General Meeting due to other commitment.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the formulation of strategies
and policies, including an oversight of the management. The
management of the Company is responsible for the day-to-day
operations of the Company under the leadership of the Chief
Executive Officer.

As at 31 December 2018, the Board comprised nine Directors,
namely (i) Mr. Liu Stefan (as Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Huang
Songyuan and Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest (as Chief Financial Officer)
as executive Directors; (ii) Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy, Mr. Li
Jiong and Mr. Xu Jiangiang as non-executive Directors; and (iii) Ms.
Zhao Guixin, Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser and Mr. Lin Wenhui as
independent non-executive Directors. The Company has fulfilled
the requirement of Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules that at least one
of the independent non-executive Directors must have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

Each executive Director has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a specific term, and his term of office is subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the articles
of association of the Company and the Listing Rules. For all non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors, the
term of them has been fixed for 3 years and they are also subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the articles
of association of the Company and the Listing Rules.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
material/relevant relationships) among members of the Board.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section of
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 16 to
23 of this annual report.

A 56 5 16 B

Ik
it

=
=

=+

BHIFT AR RN R REEK - B8
EI’JIf’E EITRAENEERET » AR
EaEARFNHETEEFE-

&
BE

_” UUF 8

=
=)
e

Tli\@

=]

R-ZE—N\E+_A=+—H BFE€HNSB
BEAK - BI)BITRFE LA (FTBUBE) - B8
BREERERBERE(BERUBE) EAINT
ZE F ; (ii)Stephen Gregory McCoy st 4 « Z=
FAERTRABLEERIFNITES K
£2 47+ - Cornelis Jacobus Keyserst 4 & #k
XIBAEEIVERBUIIFNITESE - ARFIERE
LMRAIE310(2)EE x> — BB IENTT
ERARAEEEEER N BB SE
BEEMB AT

EPTEFHEEARR AR EFHN
BR¥5 e - HEARBEARR 2 HEEEAEA

N EM AR RSRERENBREL - SLATEIEH
TESEREYIFRTESEMS @ RENTHE

ER=F  MPFTFARBEARFZEHER
AR RN Fo £ R Bl (R A I B R AT o

EEeKREZREMETMBER(BENBE - 3%
% EEREA S HERRER) -
EERERABEHNAFTREICEE23E[ESH

NaRERERE ]| — -

25

E i R % <5 4 T 5 R



26

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
A 56 IR B

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

In determining the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors, the Board has followed the requirements as set out in
the Listing Rules. The Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based
on such confirmation, the Company is of the view that all the
independent non-executive Directors have met the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers
that they are independent.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The Chairman of
the Board is responsible for the leadership and effective running
of the Board, and for ensuring that all key and appropriate issues
are discussed by the Board in a timely and constructive manner,
while the Chief Executive Officer, supported by other members
of the Board and the senior management, is responsible for the
day-to-day management of the Group’s business, including the
implementation of major strategies and initiatives adopted by
the Group. The roles of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer were assumed by Mr. Li Zhi Da, the then non-
executive Director, and Mr. Liu Stefan, an executive Director,
respectively. However, after the retirement of Mr. Li Zhi Da, no
individual appointed as Chairman of the Board.

The Board will keep reviewing the current structure of the Board
from time to time. The Board is looking for a candidate with suitable
knowledge, skills and experience is identified, the Company will
make appointment to fill the vacancy of chairman/chairperson as
appropriate.

RE-ELECTION OF RETIRING DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director, including those appointed
for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. All the retiring Directors shall be eligible for
re-election. A circular which includes the biographical details of the
retiring Directors who stand for re-election together with the notice
of annual general meeting of the Company will be despatched to
the shareholders of the Company in due course.
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BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS ATTENDANCE

The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Between scheduled meetings,
senior management of the Company from time to time meets with
Directors to discuss the businesses of the Group. In addition,
Directors have full access to information on the Group and
independent professional advice whenever deemed necessary by
the Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board held ten
board meetings and the Company held one general meeting, and
the attendance records of these meetings are set out below:
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Board Meetings AGM Held on

Attended/Eligible 21 May 2018

to Attend Attended

Ezged HER-2-NF
HERY,/ HER-t+-BEfZ

EERHERE BRREAEAE
Executive Directors HTEE
Mr. Liu Stefan (Chief Executive Officer) BITRFE S (7T 483) 10/10 11
Mr. Huang Songyuan HEREE 4/4 N/A
(appointed on 21 May 2018) (R-FE-NFERA-+—HEZHF) T
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Emest (Chief Financial Officer) EREE%4 (BEHKE) 4/4 N/A
(appointed on 21 May 2018) (RZE-NNERA=1T—HEZHF) i
Non-executive Directors FYTES
Mr. Li Zhi Da (Chairman) FEEE(ZE) 0/6 0/1
(retired on 21 May 2018) (R-BE-NNELZA-+—HEHL)
Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy Stephen Gregory McCoy%t & 9/10 11
Mr. Li Jiong (appointed on 21 May 2018) EMAER=ZFE-NFRAZ1T—HEZHF) 3/4 N/A
T
Mr. Xu Jiangiang FEBEE 4/4 N/A
(appointed on 21 May 2018) (RZE-NNERA-1T—HEZHF) T
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Ms. Zhao Guixin HEEERL 910 111
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keyser5t 4 10/10 11
Mr. Lin Wenhui MR 9/10 n
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Directors and officers are indemnified under a directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance against any liability incurred by them in
the discharge of their duties while holding office as the Directors
and officers of the Company.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) during the year ended
31 December 2018 as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions in securities of the Company by the Directors.
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Having made specific enquiry with the Directors, all the Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills so as to ensure
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The
Company should be responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions
and duties of the Director.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has
arranged an in-house seminar for and provided relevant training
materials to the Directors. A summary of the records of training
received by the Directors is as follows:

A 56 5 16 B

RAZTEFFHARBEHR  IAESHER
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Training on Corporate
Governance Regulatory
Development and/or

Other Suitable Topics
FHLXER EERRE
& SREAMEEEEZEZI
Executive Directors HMITES
Mr. Liu Stefan (Chief Executive Officer) LIREE S (TT I AEEL) 4
Mr. Huang Songyuan FHMEIR A AE v
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest (Chief Financial Officer) Z¥REEEE (B EHFE) v
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy Stephen Gregory McCoy 7t 4 v
Mr. Li Jiong FEILE v
Mr. Xu Jiangiang FFIESR LA v
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUAFHTES
Ms. Zhao Guixin HEEAL L v
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keysersft 4 v
Mr. Lin Wenhui MR ST A v
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on 18 December 2012. Written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code has been adopted.
The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to evaluate
the performance and determine the remuneration packages of the
Directors and the senior management of the Group, and evaluate
the performance and make recommendations on any other
employee benefit arrangement.

The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Ms. Zhao Guixin, Mr. Cornelis Jacobus
Keyser and Mr. Lin Wenhui. Ms. Zhao Guixin is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Remuneration
Committee held three meetings. Details of the attendance of
the Remuneration Committee meetings during the year ended
31 December 2018 are set out below:
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Attended/Eligible to Attend

HEXRE EERHERH
Ms. Zhao Guixin (Chairman) HEEZ T (FE) 3/3
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keysert & 3/3
Mr. Lin Wenhui MR S A 2/3

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Remuneration
Committee has considered and recommended to the Board,
amongst other things, distribution of the 2017 bonus payments for
the Directors and the senior management of the Company.

—N\F+_AB=1+—BHILFE  FHM
Fe (HEheiiH) A
—EF ML ©

:I:—?

LESEEREILERE
AEELEREEERE T



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) on 18 December 2012. Written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code has been adopted.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular basis
and make recommendations to the Board regarding nomination of
suitable candidate to fill vacancies in the Board.

The Nomination Committee consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Zhao Guixin, Mr. Cornelis
Jacobus Keyser and Mr. Lin Wenhui. Ms. Zhao Guixin is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Nomination
Committee held two meetings. Details of the attendance of the
Nomination Committee meetings are set out below:
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REZERE
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EARTAPAE L D BRA - REEBRNEE
BEATHRAEFRORE  SERER -
THEEABARNARE T ERAEFY
YR -

REEZEEREZRBIIERNITES » BIHEE
2277+ - Cornelis Jacobus Keyserst 4 K kX
WA  MEEZTARBREZESTER -

BE-T—\F+-A=T—ALFE RE
EEERTTMAEH - REZEEEHN

A s E S T

Attended/Eligible to Attend

HEREEEREERE
Ms. Zhao Guixin (Chairman) iR (EE) 2/2
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keyserit A& 2/2
Mr. Lin Wenhui PRI 5 A 1/2

The Nomination Committee considered and reviewed the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors, the
structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board, and the
attendance records of the Board meetings, committees meetings
and general meetings for the year ended 31 December 2018. The
Nomination Committee recommended the Board to approve the
proposed sequence for re-election of retiring Directors in 2019
annual general meeting. The Nomination Committee considers that
the existing policy for nomination, selection and recommendation
for directorship are suitable.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in
the boardroom. The Board has therefore adopted a board diversity
policy which stated that the Board sees diversity as a wide concept
and believes that a diversity of perspectives can be achieved
through consideration of a number of factors, including but not
limited to skills, regional and industry experience, background,
race, gender and other qualities. In informing its perspective on
diversity, the Company will also take into account factors based on
its own business model and specific needs from time to time.
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The Company endeavours to ensure that the Board has the
appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives that are required to support the execution of its
business strategy and in order for the Board to be effective.

The Nomination Committee shall consider, among others, the
following criteria in evaluating and selecting candidates for
directorships:

° Character and integrity;

e  Personal attributes including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge, experience and expertise that are relevant to the
Company’s business and corporate strategy, and the ability
to provide insights and practical wisdom based on those
attributes;

e Willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a
Board member, other directorships, memberships of various
committees and significant commitments;

° For independent non-executive directors to be appointed in
accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidates
would be considered independent with reference to the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;

e  Ability to develop a good working relationship with other Board
members and contribute to the Board’s working relationship
with senior management of the Company;

e  Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives adopted
by the Committee for achieving diversity on the Board; and

e Any other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company aims to build and maintain a Board with a diversity
of Directors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, or professional experience.
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A truly diverse Board will include and make good use of differences
in the skills, regional and industry experience, background, race,
gender and other qualities of Directors. These differences will be
taken into account in determining the optimum composition of the
Board. All Board appointments will be based on merit while taking
into account diversity (including gender diversity).

The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree annually
measurable objectives for implementing diversity on the Board
and recommend them to the Board for adoption. The Nomination
Committee will report annually, in the corporate governance report,
on the Board’s composition under diversified perspectives, and
monitor the implementation of this policy.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 18 December 2012 with written terms of reference
in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting
process and risk management and internal control systems of the
Company, nominate and monitor external auditors and provide
advice and comments to the Directors.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Lin Wenhui, Ms. Zhao Guixin and Mr.
Cornelis Jacobus Keyser. Mr. Lin Wenhui is the chairman of the
Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has met the external auditors of the Group
to review the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and discussed auditing, risk management and internal
control systems and financial reporting matters including the review
of this annual report and financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee
held two meetings. The attendance records of the Audit Committee
meetings during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out
below:

BHE_FT-N\F+_A=1t—"HLFE B
ZESRTTMASHE BE_ZT-N\F+
A=+—HLEFENEZZESERNLFEL
ERE IS

Attended/EIigibIe to Attend
RE EEREEREY

Mr. Lin Wenhui (Chairman) MBI E (F/E) 2/2
Ms. Zhao Guixin fii=KEd g 2/2
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Cornelis Jacobus Keyserst 4 2/2

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee
reviewed with the management and the auditors of the Company
their audit findings, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Company, legal and regulatory compliance, and
financial reporting matters.

The audited consolidated results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company established a corporate governance committee
(the “CG Committee”) on 18 December 2012. Written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code has been adopted. The
primary duties of the CG Committee are to develop and review the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
make recommendations to the Board.

The CG Committee consists of four members, namely, Mr. Cornelis
Jacobus Keyser, Mr. Liu Stefan, Ms. Zhao Guixin and Mr. Lin
Wenhui. Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser is the chairman of the CG
Committee. All members are independent non-executive Directors,
except Mr. Liu Stefan, who is an executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.

BHE_ZT-N\F+-_A=1t—"HILFE B
e mLHKAﬂEEE&%;&EmE%B@T&ﬁ
ZEZBR - AREIRMHEEHRBI R ED]
EEREEARBN  ARMBEMEFH -

AEBRBE—_T-N\F+_A=1t—HILF
EZRBERGEARACHELZZESEMN -
CREREAR

ZA/NS )i _¢+ AT \BRILGEE
BEREE ([RXERZEE]) - EEBERE
(SR=NISE D S?E'Jiﬁrﬁlﬁ%iﬁﬂ BERERE
BENTIZRE /I MREARRNDES
BRRMEN - WRAEFFROES -

TEERZEFBEFEMAKE - BlCornelis
Jacobus Keyserfc 4 ~ BIfRFE LA « HER L
= RSB S & - Cornelis Jacobus Keyserf‘ﬁ
ERTEEREEBEXIR - MBEKEH AR
IEFNITE S - HRIRFE L LRI - TBZZ%Z!KA A
HITESRITHER -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the CG Committee
held two meetings. Details of the attendance of the CG Committee
meetings are set out below:
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Attended/EIigibIe to Attend
RE BEREERE

Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser

(Chairman) (£/%)
Mr. Liu Stefan BIREE LA
Ms. Zhao Guixin FHEEZE LT
Mr. Lin Wenhui PRI HE S A&

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the CG Committee
considered and reviewed the progress on the implementation of
the Group’s corporate governance framework. The CG Committee
also reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Company. Besides, the CG Committee considered and reviewed
the environmental, social and governance reporting proposal. The
CG Committee considers that the existing policies and practices of
corporate governance of the Company are suitable.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors ensure the financial statements of the Group are
prepared in accordance with the statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards.

The Directors’ responsibilities in the preparation of the financial
statements and the auditor’s responsibilities are set out in the
section of “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 62 to 68 of this
annual report.

Cornelis Jacobus Keysert 4=

2/2
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1/2
2/2
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the
Company’s assets and shareholders’ interests, and, with the
Audit Committee, for reviewing areas of risk and uncertainty, the
operation and effectiveness of the Group'’s systems of internal
control and the procedures by which these are monitored.
The internal audit department of the Company (“Internal Audit
Department”) is delegated to ensure and maintain sound internal
control functions by monitoring such internal control systems
and procedures constantly so as to ensure that they can provide
reasonable assurance against misstatement or loss and to manage
risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems. The internal audit
function is independent of the operating businesses of the Group.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage but not eliminate business risk, to help safeguard the
Group’s assets against fraud and other irregularities, and to give
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material financial
misstatement or loss. In addition, it should provide a basis for the
maintenance of proper and fair accounting records and assist in the
compliance with relevant rules and regulations.

During the year under review, the Board reviewed all material
internal controls, including financial, operational and compliance
control. It also reviewed with the Audit Committee and the
information from the Internal Audit Department in respect of the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems, adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function and satisfied that they

were effective and in compliance with the Group’s policies.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The audit works of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
were performed by PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”).
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The total fee paid/payable in respect of the statutory audit and
non-audit services provided by PwC is set out in the following table:
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BLAE LUK B R B RAEE R RIFEZR
BEN/ BNOEERG#HNTX :

2018 2017

—E-N\#F —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Audit services EZ RS 3,223 2,966

Non-audit services IEEZIRTE 302 679

Total B5EE 3,525 3,645
COMPANY SECRETARY AEME

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary. The Company Secretary reports to the
Chairman on board governance matters, and is responsible for
ensuring that Board procedures are followed and for facilitating
communications among Directors as well as with shareholders and
management.

During the year under review, the Company Secretary undertook
over 15 hours of professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy. The dividend payout
ratio shall be determined or recommended, as appropriate, by
the Board at its absolute discretion after taking into account of
the operating results, cash flow, financial condition and capital
requirements of the Group, and subject to:

e the articles of association of the Company;

e the applicable restrictions and requirements under the laws of
the Cayman Islands; and

° any other applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association of the Company,
any one or more shareholders of the Company holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by
the Company.

In the event that any shareholders of the Company holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company would like to call for an extraordinary
general meeting, please make a written requisition to the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong from time to time, making
attention to “The Board of Directors and the Company Secretary”.

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to put forward
proposals at the general meetings under the memorandum and
articles of association of the Company. If shareholders wish to do
so, they may request to convene an extraordinary general meeting
as stipulated above and specify the proposals in such written
requisition.

For any enquiries, shareholders are welcome to contact the
Company by post to the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong, by phone at (852) 3120 8888 or by fax at (852) 3120 8800.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

All corporate communication materials published on The Stock
Exchange website (http://www.hkexnews.hk) are posted on the
Company'’s corporate website (http://www.kvblistco.com) as soon
as practicable after their release. The Company’s constitutional
documents are also available on both websites. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, there have not been any significant
changes to the Company’s constitutional documents.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of KVB
Kunlun Financial Group Limited (the “Company”,
subsidiaries, the “Group”) is pleased to present its report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

together with its

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
December 2018 by business and geographical segments are set
out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL RESULTS

The annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 are set out in the section headed “Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income” of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 24 June 2019 to Thursday, 27 June 2019, both days
inclusive, during the period no transfers of shares of the Company
will be registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the
2019 Annual General Meeting, all transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Union Registrars Limited, at Suites 3301-04, 33/F, Two Chinachem
Exchange Square, 338 King’s Road, North Point, Hong Kong for
registration by no later than 4:00 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Friday,
21 June 2019.
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BUSINESS REVIEW
Business Review and Future Prospect

Since the listing of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange on 3 July 2013, the Company has been implementing its
business plans to accomplish its business objectives. A review of
the business of the Group during the year and a discussion on the
Group’s future business development are provided in the section of
“Statement from the Chief Executive Officer” on pages 5 to 7 of this
annual report.

Financial Key Performance Indicators

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators is provided in the section of
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 8 to 15 of this
annual report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations
of the Group, some of which are inherent to its business and some
are affected by the external environment. The Group’s major risks
are summarized below.

(1) Financial risks

The Group’s principal business activities are exposed to
a variety of key financial risks including credit risk, market
risk (such as interest rate risk and foreign currency risk),
and liquidity risk. Details of the aforesaid key risks and
risk mitigation measures are set out in “Financial Risk
Management” in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(2) Macro-economic environment

Adverse macro-economic changes may affect the business
environment, which may in turn affect the operating results. It is
therefore important that the Group is able to keep track of such
changes of macro-economic environment and swiftly adjusts
its operating policy and business plan under different market
conditions.
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(3) Information technology systems

Financial services sector is highly dependent on information
technology systems and networks. Any material disruption
or slowdown of our IT systems, including a disruption or
slowdown caused by our failure to successfully upgrade
our systems, system failures, viruses or cyber attacks could
cause a loss of data or operation interruption. Therefore, we
invest continuously in our IT systems so as to keep up with the
technology security.

The above is not intended to be an exhaustive list of all
principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group. These
may change over time as new risks and uncertainties
emerge and others cease to be of concern. The Directors will
constantly evaluate the Group’s business objectives and may
change or modify plans against the changing market condition
to avert or minimise the risks so as to attain sustainable
business growth of the Group.

Environmental Policy and Performance

We are committed to protect the environment by introducing a
green policy to enhance the awareness of environmental protection
among staff. The Group has implemented internal recycling
programme for office consumables such as toner cartridges and
paper to minimise the operation impact on the environment and
natural resources.

The Group has also implemented energy saving practices in offices
and branch premises where applicable, such as taking initiatives to
reduce paper usage by encouraging the use of websites and online
version of corporate communications. As regards reduction of
power consumption, lighting, air- conditioners and office equipment
will be turned off when not in use.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements. The Group has been allocating resources
to ensure the Group’s ongoing compliance with the updated
applicable rules and regulations. During the year under review,
the Group has complied, to the best of our knowledge, with the
Listing Rules, the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and other relevant rules and regulations.

Relationships with key stakeholders

The Group’s success lies also on the support from key
stakeholders, including employees, customers, bankers, service
providers and shareholders.

Employees

The Group treasures our employees as the most important and
valuable assets of the Group. The objective of the Group’s human
resources management is to reward and recognise our employees
by providing a competitive remuneration package, appropriate
incentives, and opportunities within the Group for career
advancement.

Customers

The Group is committed to provide excellent services to our
customers with a view to maintaining steady business and asset
growth as well as long term profitability.

Bankers

To order to ensure adequate market penetration and access, the
Group has maintained excellent relationship with our bankers and
has been soliciting funds from our bankers as and when necessary.

Service Providers

The Group’s good relationships with its key service providers
are important in provision of effective and efficient services to
our customers and meeting business challenges and regulatory
requirements. The key service providers comprise system
and equipment vendors, external consultants which provide
professional services, and other business partners which provide
value-added services to the Group.
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Shareholders

One of the corporate goals of the Group is to enhance corporate
value to our shareholders. Description of the shareholders’ rights
and our investor relations can be found in the section of “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 24 to 38 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in Note
12 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the shares issued during the year ended 31 December
2018 are set out in Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the year
under review are set out in the section headed “Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity” of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the
share premium account and retained earnings of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company subject to
the provisions of the memorandum and articles of association of
the Company and provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will
be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

As at 31 December 2018, in the opinion of the Directors, the
Company'’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
was approximately HK$369 million (2017: approximately HK$382
million).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year under review, the aggregate percentage of purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers is approximately
59.20% of the total purchases of the Group and the largest supplier
included therein amounted to approximately 25.67%.

For the year under review, the aggregate percentage of sales
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 33.05% of the total sales of the Group and the largest
customer included therein amounted to approximately 23.18%.

At no time during the year have the Directors, chief executive,
substantial shareholders of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or their associates (which to the knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in
these major customers and suppliers.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2018, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out in the section headed
“Financial Summary” of this annual report.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits scheme for the year
ended 31 December 2018 are set out in Note 2.17 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Stefan (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Huang Songyuan
(Appointed on 21 May 2018)

Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest (Chief Financial Officer)
(Appointed on 21 May 2018)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Zhi Da (Chairman)
(Retired on 21 May 2018)
Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy
Mr. Li Jiong (Appointed on 21 May 2018)
Mr. Xu Jiangiang
(Appointed on 21 May 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Zhao Guixin
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser
Mr. Lin Wenhui

In accordance with article 84(1) of the articles of association of
the Company, one-third of the Directors shall retire but are eligible
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. Any new Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the Board shall hold office only until the next following
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election pursuant to article 83(3) of the articles of association of the
Company. Details of the Directors retiring and subject to re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will be
contained in a circular of the forthcoming annual general meeting to
be despatched in due course.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors have entered into any service contract with
any member of the Group which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Related Party
Transactions” and “Continuing Connected Transactions” and Note
30 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report, no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which any of the Company’s subsidiaries
and fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or an
entity connected with a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at any time during the year or at the
end of the year.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the heading “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests in Securities” below, at no time during the year or at the
end of the year has been/was the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Company'’s Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, subject
to the applicable laws and regulations, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which they or any of them may incur or sustain in
or about the execution of their duty in their offices. Such permitted
indemnity provision has been in force throughout the Year. The
Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors and their respective
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) had any business
or interest in a business which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the convertible bonds and share option scheme of the
Company as disclosed below, no equity-linked agreements that
will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that require the
Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company during
the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 12 February 2018 (the “Issue Date”), the Company issued 7.5%
convertible bonds with a principal amount of HK$200 million (the
“Bonds”) to two individuals. The Bonds will become mature on
the second anniversary from the Issue Date. The Company may
extend the maturity date subject to the terms of the subscription
agreement.

Further information on the Bonds are set out in Note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The net proceeds from the issuance have been used for investment
in financial assets and general working capital.

DIRECTORS' REPORT
e

ESNHRFES
(Z_FE-N\F+A=+—RH #HESESE .
MiEELEENBEAL(EER TR RN
AR SR 7K 55 [ SR A5 18 A 3 R RE I A B T FY 275

FEEAE IR

B SR 88 165 2R

RN X PR R 2 AN A B AR AR E 75 N R AR AT
5 - REARNRAFRELERE - ARFRER]
S AS & AT BB B R AR T TAX 0 B AR SR 6
W% - SESRAN R R RIS 175 K = sk Al BE
BYARRREITRM R EH B HE

AR ES

N-EBE—NEFE-A+—B ([ET7EHE]) » AA
A\ W 4 {E A 17 48 € %8 /200,000,0007% 7T
Z75EEABREKRES ([EH])) - BEEESE
REEITHEARERTE —EFEIH - AR F] A AR
BREW®R ZIGRERI A -

BRES 2 E —PHIBENGE M B mRMGE
22 °

BITZMERIBEFRECANKESREEN —
REEEE e

47

&

E i R % <5 4 T 5 R



48

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

DIRECTORS REPORT
o3

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on

3 June 2013. A summary of the Scheme is as follows:

(@

(b)

Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is for the Group to attract, retain
and motivate talented Participants (as defined below) to strive
for future developments and expansion of the Group.

Participants of the Scheme

Under the Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, invite the
following persons as participants (the “Participants”) of the
Scheme:

(i) any executive or non-executive Director including any
independent non-executive Director or any employee
(whether full-time or part-time) of any member of the
Group;

(i) any trustee of a trust (whether family, discretionary or
otherwise) whose beneficiaries or objects include any
employee or business associate of the Group;

(i) any consultant (in the areas of legal, technical, financial or
corporate management) and other adviser to any member
of the Group;

(iv) any supplier of goods and/or services to the Group; or

(v) any other person whom the Board considers, in its sole
discretion, has contributed to the Group.

In determining the basis of eligibility of each Participant, the

Board would take into account such factors as the Board may
at its discretion consider appropriate.
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()

(d)

(e)

Basis for determining the exercise price and acceptance of
offer

The exercise price of an option to subscribe for shares granted
under the Scheme shall be a price determined by the Board at
its sole discretion and notified to the Participant and shall be
no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
on the date on which an option is granted; (ii) the average
closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date on which an option is granted; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Share.

Offer of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted
by the grantee when the duplicate of the relevant offer letter
comprising acceptance of the option duly signed by the
grantee together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1.00 (or such other nominal sum in any currency as the
Board may determine) by way of consideration for the grant.

Maximum numbers available for issue

The total number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the adoption date (the
“General Scheme Limit”) unless further shareholders’ approval
is obtained in general meeting, provided that options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme will not be counted
for the purpose of calculating the General Scheme Limit.

Notwithstanding the foregoing the total number of shares
of the Company which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme shall not exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in
issue from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each Participant

For each Participant, the total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all options granted and further to
be granted in any 12-month period (including both exercised
and outstanding options) and in the 12-month period up to and
including the acceptance date (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) shall not in isolation or aggregate
exceed 1% of the shares, and any grant of option which would
result in such limit being exceeded shall be approved by the
Company in general meeting with such Participant and any
associate thereof abstaining from voting.

()
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(e)
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(9)

(h)

Time of exercise of the option

An option may be exercised in whole or in part in accordance
with the terms of the Scheme at any time during the period
commencing on the first business day from the date of grant
of option and expiring at the close of business on a date to be
determined and notified by the Directors which shall not be
more than 10 years from the date of grant of option.

Unless the Directors otherwise determined and stated at the
time of granting the option, there is no minimum period for
which an option must be held before it can be exercised.

Remaining life of the Scheme

The Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years
commencing on 3 July 2013 to offer the grant of an option to
any qualifying participants.

Movements of the options granted under the Scheme

On 19 August 2015, the Company granted share options to
95 individuals to subscribe for an aggregate of 40,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company. Among the 40,000,000 share options granted,
12,200,000 share options were granted to six Directors.

On 29 December 2016, the Company granted share options
to 95 individuals to subscribe for an aggregate of 40,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company. Among the 40,000,000 share options granted,
11,750,000 share options were granted to six Directors.

On 22 March 2018, the Company granted share options to
82 individuals to subscribe for an aggregate of 40,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company. Among the 40,000,000 share options granted,
17,550,000 share options were granted to seven Directors.

Details of the movements of the options granted under the
Scheme are set out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of
the Directors, chief executive, substantial shareholders of the
Company or their respective associates (as defined under the
Listing Rules) had any right to subscribe for the shares of the
Company under the Scheme.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, save as disclosed below, none of the
Directors nor the chief executive of the Company or their associates
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were (i) required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which he is taken or deemed to have taken under
such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii)
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Director contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange:

Interests in shares of the Company:
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Approximate %

Number of shares/

of the number

Name of director Capacity underlying shares held Total of issued shares
FrsRe,/ HEBTRG
BEEpR -gvi) HEROEA Ay HEABYEIH
Shares Options
B 5 BRE
(Note 1)
(Hiit1)
Mr. Liu Stefan Beneficial owner 9,520,000 18,000,000 27,520,000 1.35%
(Chief Executive Officer)
BfRGE K (TTiECAE ) ERBEBA
Mr. Huang Songyuan Beneficial owner - 6,850,000 6,850,000 0.34%
BEEREAE ERBEBA
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit, Ernest Beneficial owner - 2,050,000 2,050,000 0.10%
(Chief Financial Officer)
BERBEE(EEYIFE) ExBEAA
Mr. Stephen Gregory McCoy Beneficial owner - 2,000,000 2,000,000 0.10%

Stephen Gregory McCoy %t &

It

BEDBEEA
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Number of shares/

Approximate %
of the number

Name of director Capacity underlying shares held Total of issued shares
s,/ HEBRTRS
BEEMA -gvi) HEROEAE Ay HEABYEIH
Shares Options
& 5 BRE
(Note 1)
(Hfit1)
Ms. Zhao Guixin Beneficial owner 200,000 700,000 900,000 0.04%
HEEZL EnEAA
Mr. Cornelis Jacobus Keyser Beneficial owner - 700,000 700,000 0.03%
Cornelis Jacobus Keyserst 4 EmEAA
Mr. Lin Wenhui Beneficial owner 200,000 700,000 900,000 0.04%
MRS & EnEAA
Note: s

1. Those options were granted on 19 August 2015, 29 December 2016 1.

and 22 March 2018 respectively under the Scheme.

=

=

BREBRESIIR-_FE—AFNA+NIH =
NF+ A=+ NAR=—ZF—NF=H
T HIREZ AR -



INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, so far as was known to the Directors
or chief executive of the Company, the following persons (other
than the directors or chief executive of the Company) had, or were
deemed or taken to have, an interest or short position in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the register to be kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified

DIRECTORS REPORT
o 3

FERRRRS - HEROKRES 2#ES
RRAE

BARREFREIBTHRAEMM R_F
—N\F+ZA=+—B UTAL(EXRRAZ
EFHTEEBTHRABRIN RARQRARND &
MBI () A SRR AR EER A ARIERE
% M EIE ARG EXVER 2535 & 2 R X A1 A
N EH R RSN AR RR RS 5 MR (R A
L3361 P 17 #Y B RC sk LA Ho Ath 75 =X AT & A8
RAE| BT RE s SR B

to the Company and the Stock Exchange:

Number of shares/
underlying shares held
FrislRe RERGHE
Approximate%
Name of substantial Derivative of the number
shareholder Capacity Shares interests Total of issued shares
REBT
RO #E
TERRER EL) i) PTERE By BRED
CITIC Securities Company Limited Interests in controlled 1,200,310,001 - 1,200,310,001 59.03%
(“CITIC Securities”) corporation (Note 1)
RETFROERAR ([FEEF])  RIEHEBRER (Hi21)
CITIC Securities Overseas Investment Beneficial owner 1,200,310,001 - 1,200,310,001 59.03%
Company Limited
PRI R EIMERR AT EREAA
KVB Kunlun Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 300,000,000 - 300,000,000 14.75%
("KVB Holdings”) (Note 2)
KVB Kunlun Holdings Limited ERBEBA
(TKVB Holdings ) (#/7#2)
Mr. Li Zhi Da (Note 2) Interests in controlled 300,000,000 - 300,000,000 14.75%
corporation
FEERE W22 IR EHEE 2 %
Calypso International Investment Beneficial owner 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.24%
Co., Limited (Note 3)
Calypso International Investment ERBEBA
Co., Limited (#7£3)
HNA Group (International) Company Interests in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.24%

Limited (Note 3)

BREE (ER) BRAR (HiF3)

corporation

REEHEE 2 s
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Number of shares/
underlying shares held
FisRe RERGHE
Approximate%
Name of substantial Derivative of the number
shareholder Capacity Shares interests Total of issued shares
HERT
RO#E
TERRER 54 i) TEER ag BREDH
HNA Group Co., Ltd. (Note 3) Interests in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.24%
corporation
BEBERRR (#73) REEGNER 2 5
Hainan Traffic Administration Holding Interests in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.24%
Co., Ltd. (Note 3) corporation
BEAREERERAR (Hi23) REZHER R
Sheng Tang Development (Yangpu) Interests in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.24%
Co. Ltd. (Note 3) corporation
REER(FR) BRAR (H:23) REEHEE 2 5
Tang Dynasty Development Co. Ltd. Interests in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.24%
(Note 3) corporation
BRERRERDA (H73) REEGER 2 5
Pan- American Aviation Holding Interests in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.24%
Company (Note 3) corporation
Pan-American Aviation Holding Company W52 #AE 2 #x
(H1it3)
Cihang Sino-Western Cultural and Interests in controlled 106,525,000 - 106,525,000 5.24%
Educational Exchange Foundation corporation
Limited (Note 3)
EMRAAXHXNESEEBRAR  RIEFEE R
(H1it3)
Notes: it -

1. As CITIC Securities is entitled to control over one-third of the voting 1.
power at general meetings of CITIC Securities Overseas Investment
Company Limited, CITIC Securities is deemed under the SFO to be
interested in the entire 1,200,310,001 shares held by CITIC Securities
Overseas Investment Company Limited.

R (5 4 55 B R (5 FE 58 90 18 B H IR
RAIZREBEAX G LGB =52 — AR E
B IRIBFZRAE IR - (5 i 54512 53
RAPFFEF GO B F RN Al 55 892 55
1,200,310,0018 & 17 HEH # 7s ©



2. AsMr. Li Zhi Da is entitled to control over one-third of the voting power
at general meetings of KVB Holdings, he is deemed under the SFO to
be interested in the entire 300,000,000 shares held by KVB Holdings.

3. Calypso International Investment Co., Limited was a wholly owned
subsidiary of HNA Group (International) Company Limited, which was
in turn owned as to 91.09% by HNA Group Co., Ltd.. HNA Group Co.,
Ltd. was held as to 70% by Hainan Traffic Administration Holding Co.,
Ltd.. Hainan Traffic Administration Holding Co., Ltd. was in turn held
as to 50% by Sheng Tang Development (Yangpu) Co., Ltd.. Sheng
Tang Development (Yangpu) Co., Ltd. was held as to 65% by Hainan
Province Cihang Foundation and 35% by Tang Dynasty Development
Co., Ltd. which was in turn 98% held by Pan-American Aviation
Holding Company, which is wholly held by Cihang Sino-Western
Cultural and Educational Exchange Foundation Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Directors
are not aware of any other person who has an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares (including interest in
options, if any) of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing connected
transactions”, no contract of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which any member of the Group was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year ended 31
December 2018.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing connected
transactions”, no contract of significance (including provision of
services) between the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, and a
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries subsisted during
the year ended 31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS' REPORT
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2 HIRFEEEAEFRIEEIKVB HoldingsfR#E A

B LA =5 —RREE  IRIEES KA
B1E0) - 1% #8188 ARKVB Holdings % # ¥+ 5 &9
300,000,0008% i (7 # #E G 1z ©

3. Calypso International Investment Co.,Limited

BAEE (BIR) BR A A2 2 ENBARA] -
7 8 i 5 [ (EG BY) B R 2 7] /7 )& A 2E [ 7 R
DNEEEI1.09% 5 © JGMIFEEE R Al )6
AXREFRBRINFIFHE70%# 2 - MAREK
EIFIRB R L 7 B R CF#) BIRA Alfr
FE0%Em o BE)E F IR (FH) BRI 7l #1865
BEM AN B L BT H65%Em N 5 F R
BRRAIFFBEIBIERD  BEFFREERAAIH
Pan-American Aviation Holding Company## &
98%1# zx + MiPan-American Aviation Holding
Company i Z i R 75 75 X H R i E L B HRA
B2 EHH -

BREXFHBEREEN R_FT—-NE+_A1
=t—H BRI TABREMEMALTREAR
AR S AR RE A (D B A RC s3I R IR 78 75 K B
BIRPIEIB6IEMETF 2 ELMZERIOXR
(BRERERE . ES (E)) °

BEREHD

BRIFERERS | —SMEEEI - AREIE
A B R B BT I B AR EXFBEEANAAN
ARAEEFNHEPERAERERERAERMR

(E_E-N\FT_A=+—BILEFERNDA
BRZEREH °

BRIFERERS | —fMEEEIN » ARFIK
ELATA(rTB B8 2~ B R 2 R B AR s EL AT (] P /B 2 )
WEIIRBE—FT-N\F+-_A=+—Hit
FERNDABRZEXREH (BIERHERE)
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2018 are disclosed in Note
30 to the consolidated financial statements. Certain of these
transactions also constitute continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules, as identified below.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Sharing of Office premises

As disclosed in an announcement of the Company dated 18
December 2015, the Company and KVB Kunlun Holdings Limited
(“KVB Holdings”) entered into an existing renewed office licence
agreement (the “Existing Renewed Office Licence Agreement”) on
18 December 2015 for a term from 1 January 2016 to 31 December
2018. The annual caps for the transactions contemplated under the
Existing Renewed Office Licence Agreement for the years ended 31
December 2016, 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018 were
HK$4 million, HK$4.5 million and HK$5 million, respectively.

As disclosed in an announcement of the Company dated
1 December 2017, the Company and KVB Holdings entered into a
supplemental agreement to the Existing Renewed Office Licence
Agreement on 1 December 2017 to revise certain terms of the
Existing Renewed Office Licence Agreement and the revised
annual caps for the services provided by the Company. For the
services provided by the Company for each of the three years
ended 31 December 2016, 31 December 2017 and 31 December
2018, the revised annual caps are HK$4 million, HK$3.7 million and
HK$1.9 million. For the services provided by KVB Holdings for each
of the three years ended 31 December 2016, 31 December 2017
and 31 December 2018, the revised annuals cap were nil, HK$0.8
million and HK$3.1 million respectively.

EEEH

FA - BHEREIEREEARRT 2R
REDEBMA LKA BEMEL -

BBLXS

AEEHEZ_Z— \FF+A=1T—HILFE
CERBEH AR ZEBERIRE M HEHRERWM T
30 ° BN ZER HIMERK LR A2 &R E
R HFBWT -

HARLEYWHE

WA ATEBRA-E—AF+_A+N\BZ
NEFTHE - AR A EKVYB Kunlun Holdings
Limited ([KVB Holdings ) R =& — A F+ =
A+ N\BRIVBEERKEERNERFT R
([REKEER A AEFTERED B IRA
—E-XFE—A—BRBE=ZE—N\F+=A
=t—HlE - HEZFE-—R"F+-HA=+—
B ZZ—+tHF+HA=1+—BEZZF—N\F
TZRA=+—HILFE BELEBENLNER
TREBGEETRETRIZFE LR A A
4,000,000/ 7T * 4,500,000/ 7T % 5,000,00058
T o

AN BHAE—_T—ttF+_A—8BZ
NEFTH R - A A A HEKVB Holdingsid — &
—tF+ A —HIURELEBERLAER
R o MEET R AKEENR
EFTEBE2E TEHRREARQFMMERR
BIEETTFELR - HARFTRBEZZT
—R"F+_A=+—H ZFT—tF+=HA
=+—BHERZE—N\FF+ZA=4+—H1=
FEFREBEZRGEMS @ KIE5]FELRAE
4,000,000/ 7T * 3,700,000 7T & 1,900,00058
JC ° BLKVB HoldingsR&E = =T —XF+— A
=+—B -ZF—+tF+ZH=1T—HKZ=ZF
—NFE+_A=+—BIE=FSFAREZR
HmE - &EFTFE LR 5 54Z - 800,000
7 7T 53,100,000 7T °



As disclosed in an announcement of the Company dated 28
December 2018, the Company and KVB Holdings entered into
an renewed office licence agreement on 28 December 2018 (the
“Renewed Office Licence Agreement”), for a term from 1 January
2019 to 31 December 2021. For the services provided by the
Company for each of the three years ending 31 December 2019,
31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021, the annual caps of
the transactions contemplated under the Renewed Office Licence
Agreement are HK$2.2 million, HK$2.3 million and HK$2.4 million.
For the services provided by KVB Holdings for each of the three
years ending 31 December 2019, 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2021, the annual caps are HK$3.3 million, HK$3.4 million
and HK$3.6 million respectively.

Cash Dealing Services

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 17 June
2016, the Company and KVB Kunlun Global Capital Limited (“KVB
GC”), a company incorporated in BVI and is wholly owned by KVB
Holdings, entered into an existing renewed cash dealing agreement
(the “Existing Renewed Cash Dealing Agreement”) on 17 June
2016 for a term from 1 July 2016 to 31 December 2018. Pursuant
to the Existing Renewed Cash Dealing Agreement, the Company
shall provide or procure its subsidiaries to provide, to KVB GC and
its subsidiaries (“GC Group”) the cash dealing services including
the provision of the exchange of currencies (“KVB Services”) by
the Group; and KVB GC shall provide, or procure its subsidiaries to
provide, to the Group, foreign exchange conversion and settlement
services (“GC Services”). The maximum revenue (net of realized/
unrealized gain/loss) to be recorded by the Company in respect of
the KVB Services for the six months ended 31 December 2016 and
two years ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018 were
HK$7.1 million, HK$20 million and HK$20 million respectively.
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As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 28
December 2018, the Company and KVB GC entered into an
renewed cash dealing agreement (the “Renewed Cash Dealing
Agreement”) on 28 December 2018 for a term from 1 January 2019
to 31 December 2021, under which the Company, together with
its subsidiaries, would provide cash dealing services including the
provision of exchange of currencies at a rate determined at the
time of the transaction to KVB Holdings’ group. The annual caps
for transactions contemplated under the Renewed Cash Dealing
Agreement for each of the three years ended 31 December 2021 in
respect of revenue (in terms of net of realised gains, realised losses,
unrealised gains and unrealised losses) are HK$10 million.

Information Technology Services
Software Licence

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 18
December 2015, a software licence agreement (the “Software
Licence Agreement”) was entered into between the Company and
Banclogix System Co., Limited (“Banclogix”) on 18 December
2015, pursuant to which Banclogix shall grant the Company a three-
year licence for certain software to enable the Group to, inter alia,
use the routing service and data integration layer developed by
Banclogix. The licence fee payable under the Software Licence
Agreement was a one-off payment of HK$3.5 million.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 19
April 2016, the Company and Banclogix entered into an existing
information technology services agreement (the “Existing
Information Technology Services Agreement”) for a term from
19 April 2016 to 31 December 2018. Pursuant to the Existing
Information Technology Services Agreement, Banclogix would
from time to time provide software development and maintenance
services, information technology infrastructure project management
services and information technology infrastructure maintenance
services to the Group. The aggregate annual caps payable by the
Group to Banclogix under the Software Licence Agreement and the
Existing Information Technology Services Agreement for each of
the three years ended 31 December 2016, 31 December 2017 and
31 December 2018 were HK$20 million, HK$19 million and HK$20
million, respectively.
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As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 26
September 2016, the independent shareholders approved the
first supplemental agreement dated 12 August 2016 to revise
the existing aggregate annual caps under the Software Licence
Agreement and the Existing Information Technology Services
Agreement. The revised aggregate annual caps payable by the
Group to Banclogix for each of the three years ended 31 December
2016, 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018 were HK$28.5
million, HK$26.0 million and HK$24.5 million, respectively.

As disclosed in the announcement dated 27 March 2018, the
independent shareholders approved the second supplemental
agreement dated 12 February 2018 to revise the existing aggregate
annual caps under the Existing Information Technology Services
Agreement as revised by the first supplemental agreement.
The revised aggregate annual caps payable by the Group to
Banclogix for each of the three years ended 31 December 2016,
31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018 were HK$28.5 million,
HK$26.0 million and HK$37.5 million, respectively.

As disclosed in the announcement dated 28 December 2018,
the Company and Banclogix entered into a renewed information
technology services agreement (the “Renewed Information
Technology Services Agreement”) for a term from 1 January 2019
to 31 December 2021. Pursuant to the Renewed Information
Technology Services Agreement, Banclogix would from time to
time provide software development and maintenance services,
information technology infrastructure project management services
and information technology infrastructure maintenance services
to the Group. The aggregate annual caps payable by the Group
to Banclogix under the Renewed Information Technology Services
Agreement for each of the three years ended 31 December 2019,
31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021 are HK$25 million
respectively.

All independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
confirmed that the above continuing connected transactions have

been entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
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(i) either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Group
than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Directors also confirm that the Company has complied with
the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the auditors
must provide a letter to the Board confirming whether anything
has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
continuing connected transactions:

(1) have not been approved by the Board;

(2) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group if the transactions involve the
provision of goods or services by the Group;

(3) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(4) have exceeded the cap.

The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in this section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” above. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Directors are not aware of any significant event requiring
disclosure that has taken place subsequent to 31 December 2018
and up to the date of this Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float during the
year ended 31 December 2018.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$2,364,000 (2017: approximately
HK$1,313,000).

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Stefan
Chief executive officer and executive Director

Hong Kong, 18 March 2019
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pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

KVB KUNLUN FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
ErEReREBEERAT

(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of KVB Kunlun Financial
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 69 to 179, which comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2018;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended,;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA'’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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The key audit matter identified in our audit was the leveraged
trading system and controls.

Key Audit Matter
Leveraged trading system and controls

The leveraged foreign exchange and other trading income is a key
revenue stream for the Group, which contributed to over 79% of the
Group’s total income.

The Group’s leveraged foreign exchange and other trading
business and the recognition and calculation of the leveraged
foreign exchange and other trading income are dependent on the
design and operational effectiveness of key Information Technology
(“IT”) controls over the trading system given the significant amount
of transactions that are automatically processed in the systems.
Therefore, controls over the trading system are a key focus in our
audit.

Refer to Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We identified, evaluated and tested the following key IT controls of
the Group’s leveraged trading system:

1. IT General Controls Testing

Assessed IT control environment including examining the
framework of governance over the Group’s IT organisation and
the key IT general controls over the trading system covering
access to system and data, program changes, program
development, and IT operations.

2. IT Application Controls Testing

Assessed key automated control procedures, key system
generated reports from the trading system and calculations
within the automated applications through comparing the
source data to the underlying trade details and performing
recalculation on a sample basis.

The results of the audit testing performed supported our ability to
place reliance on the IT dependencies of the leveraged trading
system.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Directors’ Report, Corporate Information, Statement
from the Chief Executive Officer, Management Discussion and
Analysis, Biographies of Directors and Senior Management,
Corporate Governance Report and Financial Summary (but does
not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, and the Environmental, Social and Governance Report,
which is expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information
that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

When we read the Environmental, Social and Governance Report,
if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to the Audit Committee and
take appropriate action considering our legal rights and obligations.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is FU, Ho Kee.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 18 March 2019
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